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Mrs. Alberta Clyce
307 Woodland Avenue
Johnson City, Tennessee 37601

RE: SINKHOLE
UNIT 18, LIMITED ADDITION CONDOMINIUMS
JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE
FSE JOB NO. 92099

Dear Mrs. Clyce:

This le=ter is written to confirm my verbal opinions made Zuring
our inspaction of the sinkhole that has developed between your
anit, M. 18, and the adjacent unit on the west side of your
condominium. The sinkhole was formed approximately 3 months agc,
:z v.n deecribed to me and at the present time is & larce hole
covering the area between each of the ccndaominiums.

+hs sinkhole is a direct result of surface water saturating the
2124 between the condominiums due to a very poor drairac? feature
thal was praced within this area by tne contrastor. Water . Saatl-
cAted rj.os.= soils and allowed a solution ceavity to cavei2p n the
Pimostene formation underlying the project site and erodiwg oI tie
srils cccurred.

rna limestone strikes in a northeast tc southwest direction with a
sharp dip to the south/southeast of some 5G tc 75 degre<s within
+his lccation. This limestone formation is very solubla. When
wazer has an opportunity to saturate the soils overliyirn the

— e

limestone creating an excessive pressure, the weak zones in the
jimestcne wili erode creating the sinkholes as can be se2sn netween
vhe (<o condominiums.

The sclutioning has created a situation where an extremely lacge
op21:ing now exists between the condominiums theat has undetrmined
“oth foundations. The attached drawing indicates the epproxinate
extent of the sinkhole in plan and profile view. The fcundations
for the adjacent condominium to your condominium has been severely
undermired because the soils have collapsed beneath the entice
fourdation from the rear of the building toward the fronct.
Condominium No. 18 is at the present time bridging the <sinkhole
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pecause the end right rear corner of the building is still bearing
on residual soil with the sinkhole approximately 5 feet from the
end of the puilding. The sinkhole 1is approximately 6 to 8 feet in
width and this is the span that the foundation is covering at this
time. Beneath both condominiums, the erosion has allowed surface
soils to collapse and flow into the sinkhole. Condominium 18 has
a verv large erosion area directly underneath the crawl space and
is of larger size that the visible sinkhole between the condomini-
ums. The adjacent condominium on the west side also has erosion
underneath the crawl space that is again as large as the visible
outside sink.

Tl.e only proper way to prepare and prevent further damage is to
underpin both units by placing a structural beam that is bearing
on residual soil to the south side of each of the units spanning
and catching the existing wall and carrying at least 20 feet to

the north side or the front portion of the house. It is mandatory
that a grade beam pbe utilized and not allow the foundation to bear
within the soil matrix in these locations. Cross beams should be

placed along the rear walls to insure that support of the —rear
walls is achieved to prevent failure of the rear corners of both
cuondominiums.

After this is performed, the sinkhole should pe excavated down to
pedrock material, cleaned thoroughly, and a filter fabric such as
Tvpar 3601 or equal should be placed within the excavation. The
area directly beneath the foundations should have reinforced
~cacrete placed directly underneath the grade beam from front to
re=r so as to prevent any water from penetrating underneath both
condominiums.

After this work has been performed and placement of the filter
fabric, a No. 57, open graded stone should be placed back into the
excavation up to within one foot of subgrade level. At this depth
the filter fabric should be draped on top of the stone mass and
topsoil placed to allow grass to be pleced. At this depth a solid
pipe with a catch basin at the rear of the building should be
piaced to intercept water flowing along the rear of the condcmini-
ums in this location. This water should be captured and taken 1in
a solid pipe to the front and dumped on the street and access to
natural drainage way in this location.

Wwe understand that there are serious drainage problems within the
condominium complex itself. We recommend that the condomiiium
asso-ietion hire an architect to review the drainage situation
within the condominium project and provide recommendations as best
method of removing surface water.
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SUMMARY

ur visit, we assign a very high risk that both condo-
of the developed sinkhole is in eminent
rear portion of the Dbuildings.
bove so as to prevent further
1ding units to be utilized

Based upon O
miniums on each side
danger of collapsing of the
Repairs should be made as described a
damage from occurring to allow the bui
as purchased.

1f you have any questions, do not hesitate to call on us at your

convenience.
Very truly YOurs,
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M. Frank Castleberry, P.E.
Soils/Foundation Consultant
Tennessee NO. 12035
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